
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Heritage Markham Committee 

 

FROM: Evan Manning, Senior Heritage Planner 

 

DATE: October 11, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: Committee of Adjustment Consent and Variance Applications 

 44 Rouge Street, Markham Village 

 B/032/23, A/154/23, A/155/23 

    

Property/Building Description: One-storey dwelling constructed c.1956 as per MPAC records 

Use: Residential  

Heritage Status: Designated under Part V of the Ontario Heritage Act as a 

constituent property of the Markham Village Heritage 

Conservation District (the “MVHCD”). 

Application/Proposal 

 The City has received Committee of Adjustment (“COA”) applications seeking consent to 

sever the property municipally-known as 44 Rouge Street (the “Subject Property” or the 

“Property”), and approval of variances to enable the future construction a two-storey 

dwelling with integrated garage on the conveyed parcel, and the construction of a rear 

addition and second storey to the existing one-storey dwelling on the retained parcel.  

Tree removal is anticipated. 

 

Background 

Context 

 The Subject Property is located at the northeast corner of Rouge Street and Magill Street 

with rear yard frontage on Nelson Street; 

 The portion of the MVHCD that encompasses Rouge Street, along with nearby James 

Scott Road, is transitional in character and contains few significant heritage resources; 

 The immediate area is characterized by lots of variable size containing a mixture of 

relatively contemporary dwelling alongside those constructed in the 1950s-1960s. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Staff Comments 

Staff provide the following comments from a heritage perspective: 

 

Consent Application 

B/032/23 – 44 Rouge Street:  

For provisional consent to: 

 

a) sever and convey a parcel of land with  

 an approximate lot frontage of 15.09 metres (49.51 feet) and  

 an approximate lot area of 454.90 square metres (4,896.5 square feet) (Part 1); 

b) retain a parcel of land with  

 an approximate lot frontage of 15.03 metres (49.31 feet) and  

 an approximate lot area of 454.0 square metres (4,886.82 square feet) (Part 2);  

 

Lot Frontage 

 The current zoning by-law indicates a minimum lot frontage requirement of 60 feet (18.2 

sq m); 

 The proposed lot frontage for the conveyed parcel fronting onto Nelson Street generally 

reflects the existing lot frontages of properties along Rouge Street while the lot frontage 

for the retained parcel reflects an existing condition. As such, Staff have no objection 

from a heritage perspective to this deviation from existing development standards. 

 

Lot Area 

 The current zoning by-law indicates a minimum lot area requirement of 6600 square feet 

(613 sq m). 

 The proposed lot area for the retained and severed parcels reflects the emerging lot 

pattern of the area. For example, the lotting pattern along the south side of Rouge Street 

and the north side of James Scott Road is a result of a series of consent applications and 

does not reflect a historic condition. The lots along the north side of James Scott Road 

were created in the early-to-mid 2000s when the rear portion of the properties along the 

south side of Rouge Street were severed. As such, properties along both streets range in 

size from approximately 250 to 550 square metres. As such, Staff have no objection from 

a heritage perspective to this deviation from existing development standards. 

 

Variance Applications 

A/154/23 – 44 Rouge Street (Conveyed – Part 1):  

To permit:  

a) Table 11.1, By-Law 1229: a front yard setback of 19.94ft (6.08m); whereas the bylaw 

requires a minimum of 25ft.  

b) By-law 1229 Section 11.2 (c) (i): a porch with stairs to encroach 79.4 inches into a 

flankage yard; whereas the bylaw permits a maximum of 18 inches.  

c) Table 11.1, By-Law 1229: a rear yard setback of 23.85ft; whereas the bylaw requires a 

minimum of 25ft.  

d) Table 11.1, By-Law 1229: a lot area of 454.90 sq m (4895.43 sqft); whereas the bylaw 

requires a minimum of 613.16 (6600 sqft).  



e) Table 11.1, By-Law 1229: a lot frontage of 15.09 m (49.51 ft); whereas the bylaw 

requires a minimum of 18.2m (60 ft).  

f) By-law 99-90 Section 1.2 (vi): a maximum floor area ratio of 69.50 percent; whereas the 

by law permits a maximum of 45 percent.  

g) Table 11.1, By-Law 1229: a lot coverage of 36.8 percent; whereas the bylaw permits a 

maximum of 35 percent. 

 

as it relates to a proposed two-storey residential dwelling on the severed lot.  

Front Yard Setback 

There is considerable variability in front yard setback along Rouge Street, ranging from 

approximately 22ft to 40ft. Further, the “front yard” of the proposed dwelling, as defined within 

the zoning by-law, will front Nelson rather than Rouge Street. Given that the requested variance 

approximates the existing front yard setback of a number of properties along Rouge Street, and 

given that the proposed dwelling will be the sole building fronting the south side of Nelson Street 

at this time, Staff have no objection from a heritage perspective to the proposed variance. 

 

Encroachment into Flankage Yard 

While a variances is being sought for stair encroachment, the proposal otherwise conforms to the 

setback requirements for the flankage yard. Given that the primary volume of the dwelling 

conforms to the setback requirement, Staff are of the opinion that the encroachment of the stairs 

will not be visually intrusive or otherwise create an unattractive or inconsistent streetscape. As 

such, Staff have no objection from a heritage perspective to the proposed variance. 

 

Rear Yard Setback 

The vast majority of nearby properties have a rear yard setback that meets or exceeds the 25.0 ft 

minimum as required by the zoning by-law. This includes the aforementioned series of lots along 

the north side of James Scott Road which have rear yard setbacks of approximately 41.0 ft. As 

such, Staff are of the opinion that the proposed variance would create a condition at odds with 

nearby properties, and would diminish the value of the rear yard as amenity space. The variance, 

therefore, is not considered minor and Staff have requested that the applicant revise the proposal 

to conform to the zoning by-law in this regard.  

 

Lot Area and Lot Frontage 

Refer to the response provided for the consent application.  

 

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 

The proposed floor area ratio (“FAR”) of 69.50% is lower than the floor area ratio of the nearby 

dwellings such as those on the north side of James Scott Road which range from 80.61% to 

84.56%. Despite exceeding the permitted FAR of 45%, the dwellings at 24, 26, 28 and 30 James 

Scott Road do not appear over-sized relative to their lots or appear out of scale with the emerging 

built form character of the area. As such, Staff have no objection from a heritage perspective to 

the proposed variance. 

 

Lot Coverage 

The proposed lot coverage exceeds existing permissions by 1.8%. Given the small numerical 

deviation from the permitted lot coverage, it is the opinion of Staff that the resulting increase in 



building mass will not be readily perceptible relative. As such, Staff have no objection from a 

heritage perspective to the proposed variance. 

 

A/155/23 – 44 Rouge Street (Retained – Part 2):  

To permit:  

a) Table 11.1, By -Law 1229: a lot area 454.0 sq.m (4886.5 sq.ft); whereas the bylaw 

requires a minimum of 613.16 sq.m (6600 sq.ft).  

b) Table 11.1, By-Law 1229: a lot frontage of 15.03 m (49.31 ft); whereas the bylaw 

requires a minimum of 18.28 (60 ft).  

c) By-law 99-90, Section 1.2(iii): a depth of 17.91m; whereas the bylaw permits a maximum 

of 16.8m.  

d) By-law 99-90, Section 1.2 (vi): a maximum floor area ratio of 57.78 percent; whereas the 

bylaw permits a maximum of 45 percent.  

e) Table 11.1, By-Law 1229: a rear yard setback of 14.7ft; whereas the bylaw requires 25ft. 

 

as it relates to a proposed two-storey addition to the existing dwelling on the retained lot.  

 

Lot Area and Lot Frontage 

Refer to the response provided for the consent application. 

 

Floor Area Ratio 

Refer to the response for the proposed variances on the conveyed lot.  

 

Building Depth and Rear Yard Setback 

The vast majority of nearby properties have a rear yard setback that meets or exceeds the 25.0 ft 

minimum as required by the zoning by-law. This includes the aforementioned series of lots along 

the north side of James Scott Road that have rear yard setbacks of approximately 41.0 ft. As 

such, Staff are of the opinion that the proposed variance would create a condition at odds with 

nearby properties, and would diminish the value of the rear yard as amenity space. The variance, 

therefore, is not considered minor and Staff have requested that the applicant revise the proposal 

to conform to the zoning by-law in this regard.  

 

Conceptual Design 

 Major Heritage Permit applications have not yet been submitted for the Subject Property. 

Staff will review the forthcoming applications to ensure conformance with the policies 

and guidelines of the MVHCD Plan. At this time, Staff have no major objections to the 

conceptual designs of either dwelling as appended to this memo, but will conduct a more 

thorough review following submission of the Major Heritage Permit applications; 

 Staff will bring forward the Major Heritage Permit applications for the Committee’s 

consideration at a future date.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Suggested Recommendation for Heritage Markham  
 

THAT Heritage Markham has no objection from a heritage perspective to the consent and 

variances applications for 44 Rouge Street with the exception of the variances requested for rear 

yard setback on the retained and conveyed parcels; 

 

AND THAT Heritage Markham recommends that the applicant revise the proposal to adhere to 

the minimum rear yard setback for both the retained and conveyed parcels. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Appendix ‘A’ Location Map and Aerial Image of the Subject Property 

Appendix ‘B’ Image of the Subject Property 

Appendix ‘C’ Drawings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Appendix ‘A’ 

Location Map and Aerial Image of the Subject Property 

 

 
Property map showing the location of the Subject Property 

[outlined in blue] (Source: City of Markham) 

 

 
Aerial image looking northeast towards the Subject Property 

(Source: Google Earth) 

 



Appendix ‘B’ 
Images of the Subject Property 
 

 
 

 
The Subject Property as viewed from the intersection of Rouge Street 

and Magill Street [above] and from Nelson Street [below] (Source: Google) 

 

 

 

 



Appendix ‘C’ 
Drawings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 














